
 
 

City of Keene Minor Project Review Committee  
 

AGENDA 
 

Thursday, March 10, 2022       10:00 AM            City Hall, 2nd Floor Council Chambers 
 

I. Call to Order – Roll Call 
 
II. Minutes of Previous Meeting – December 9, 2021  
 
III. Public Hearings 

 
SPR-01-22 – Site Plan – 14 Rose Ln – Applicant and owner Davis Oil Company Inc proposes to 
install two 30,000-gal propane storage tanks on the property located at 14 Rose Ln (TMP# 120-
008-000-000-000). The property is 1.6-ac in size and is located in the Industrial District. 
 

SPR-470, Modification #1 – Site Plan – 62 Maple Ave – Applicant SVE Associates, on behalf of 
owner Cheshire Medical Center, proposes to construct a 2,400-sf canopy on the former Peerless 
Insurance Co. building, modify the parking configuration, and install a new travel lane on the 
property located at 62 Maple Ave (TMP# 227-006-000-000-000). The site is 50-ac in size and is 
located in the Industrial Park District. 
 

IV. Upcoming Meeting Dates 
• March 24, 2022 at 10:00 am (If needed due to continued public hearing) 
• April 14, 2022 at 10:00 am 
 

 

1 of 43



DRAFT 

City of Keene 1 

New Hampshire 2 

 3 

 4 

MINOR PROJECT REVIEW COMMITTEE 5 

MEETING MINUTES 6 

 7 

Thursday, December 9, 2021               10:00 AM Council Chambers, 

City Hall 

Members Present: 
John Rogers 

Don Lussier  

Lt. John Bates 

Med Kopczynski 

Michael Hagan, Alternate 

Mari Brunner 

 

Members Not Present: 
Kürt Blomquist, Alternate 

 

 

 

Other Staff Present: 
Megan Fortson, Planning 

Technician 

 

 8 

 9 

1) Call to Order – Roll Call 10 

 11 

Med Kopczynski called the meeting to order at 10:00 AM.  Roll call was conducted.  Mr. 12 

Kopczynski stated that he would like to change the order of the agenda items, starting with 13 

approving the previous meeting’s minutes. 14 

 15 

2) Minutes of Previous Meeting – September 9, 2021 16 

 17 

Ms. Brunner made a motion to approve the minutes of September 9, 2021.  Mr. Lussier  18 

seconded the motion, which passed by a vote of 5-0.  Mr. Hagan abstained because he was not at 19 

the previous meeting. 20 

 21 

3) Review MPRC Role 22 

 23 

Mr. Kopczynski stated that they need to elect a new Chair and Vice Chair, since the Community 24 

Development Director, Rhett Lamb, has retired.  He continued that first, he would like to review 25 

the MPRC’s role. 26 

 27 

Ms. Brunner stated that the members of this committee have been given the authority, by the 28 

Planning Board, to review site plans that are below a certain threshold.  She continued by saying 29 

2 of 43



MPRC Meeting Minutes  DRAFT 

December 9, 2021 

Page 2 of 4 
 

that this group essentially functions as an extension of the Planning Board.  The RSA terms it a 30 

“technical review committee,” so it is comprised entirely of staff.  They can review certain 31 

applications that are in compliance with the Planning Board’s standards.  If an application does 32 

not meet the standards listed in the City’s regulations or if it is above a certain threshold, it 33 

would have to go before the Planning Board.  The MPRC’s role is outlined in the Land 34 

Development Code.  The schedule is set up to have two meetings per month: the first meeting is 35 

for the public hearings and will always be held unless there are no applications to review and no 36 

other agenda items to discuss.  If something comes to the MPRC and during the first meeting the 37 

committee was not able to get enough information or they need to continue the meeting for any 38 

reason, then the second meeting of the month is held.  The second meeting of the month is only 39 

held as needed. 40 

 41 

Mr. Rogers clarified that the second meeting is for any continued applications.  He continued 42 

that it would not be for any new application that had been submitted after the first meeting.  Ms. 43 

Brunner replied that is correct.  She continued that regarding the Planning Board meetings, there 44 

is a rather large amount of time between the deadline and when the project goes to the Planning 45 

Board, so staff is able to do a thorough review of the application and put together a staff report.  46 

They did not build in time for that for this committee.  That is why they have two meetings set 47 

up.  Simple applications can be reviewed and approved during a single meeting; however, those 48 

requiring more time can be continued to the second meeting of the month because they are not 49 

doing the same level of review ahead of time and preparing a staff report. 50 

 51 

Mr. Lussier stated that the untimely departure of the Chair (Mr. Lamb) has raised some questions 52 

about membership, how members are appointed, and so on and so forth.  He asked Ms. Brunner 53 

about that.  Ms. Brunner replied that staff brings recommendations to the Planning Board and the 54 

Planning Board votes to appoint members to this committee.  Mr. Lussier asked who the 55 

appointed alternates are.  Ms. Brunner replied that currently it is Mike Hagan and Kürt 56 

Blomquist.  She continued that Tara Kessler used to be an alternate as well.  That position has 57 

not been filled since Ms. Kessler left.  Mr. Lussier asked if Ms. Brunner is here today as a 58 

member.  Ms. Brunner replied yes.  She continued that in October the Planning Board voted to 59 

appoint her to the committee to replace Mr. Lamb.  However, they decided to hold off on 60 

replacing the alternate position that became vacant when Ms. Kessler left, mostly because they 61 

wanted to wait until they hired more staff, including a Planner.  Megan Fortson is staffing the 62 

committee. 63 

 64 

Mr. Kopczynski stated that everyone here is aware, but for the sake of the record, he will  65 

explain that this committee grew out of staff’s intentions for the Land Development Code and 66 

the reorganization of the Community Development Department.  He continued by explaining 67 

that they are looking to make the processing of plans, and ultimately permits, as efficient as 68 

possible, and to help with the local economy.  City Staff just spent over three years creating the 69 

Land Development Code and it was a very extensive process.  They also know that it will 70 

continue into the future.  The intention of this committee is to review projects that fall within a 71 

3 of 43



MPRC Meeting Minutes  DRAFT 

December 9, 2021 

Page 3 of 4 
 

certain threshold that would normally have to go to the Planning Board..  The intention is to 72 

expedite the review process for Applicants without relaxing any rules or regulations.   73 

 74 

Mr. Kopczynski continued that this committee will take on an increasingly important role in the 75 

future.  It will replace some of the administrative approvals that were previously reviewed and 76 

approved by the Community Development Director.  Mr. Lamb would review and sign off on 77 

projects within a certain threshold and report back to the Planning Board on an annual basis with 78 

an update.  The Minor Project Review Committee has established a more formal review process.  79 

Although, the Community Development Director still has that authority to do administrative 80 

review and approvals.  Administrative reviews are the lowest level of site plan review, the Minor 81 

Project Review Committee sits in the middle, and the Planning Board is the highest level of 82 

review. Mr. Kopczynski thinks they will see many projects come through this process and many 83 

projects try to come through this process.  At first, the committee might waver a little bit, until 84 

they figure it all out, and that is okay.  If they need to go back and make some changes to the 85 

Codes, that is okay, too.  He thinks this is a good process, and one that they fully intended to do. 86 

 87 

4) MPRC 2022 Meeting Schedule 88 

 89 

Mr. Kopczynski asked if everyone has had a chance to look at the schedule.  He continued that 90 

Ms. Brunner did a good job explaining why there are two meetings scheduled per month. 91 

 92 

Mr. Lussier made a motion to approve the schedule as presented.  Mr. Hagan seconded the 93 

motion. 94 

 95 

Ms. Brunner noted that the only date that had to change slightly is the second meeting in 96 

November.  She continued that if the second meeting in November is necessary, they will be 97 

meeting on a Wednesday instead of Thursday, because of Thanksgiving.   98 

 99 

The motion passed by unanimous vote. 100 

 101 

5) Election of MPRC Chair and Vice Chair 102 

 103 

Mr. Kopczynski stated that he is currently the Vice Chair and willing to stay in that role.  If 104 

anyone wants to be Chair, that is fine with him.  Mr. Rogers stated that he will throw his hat in 105 

the ring.   106 

 107 

Ms. Brunner made a motion to elect John Rogers as Chair of the MPRC.  Mr. Lussier seconded 108 

the motion, which passed by unanimous vote.  109 

 110 

Chair Rogers asked if anyone has nominations for a Vice Chair, or if everyone is happy with the 111 

current structure and wants Mr. Kopczynski to continue in that role. 112 

 113 

4 of 43



MPRC Meeting Minutes  DRAFT 

December 9, 2021 

Page 4 of 4 
 

Ms. Brunner made a motion to elect Med Kopczynski as Vice Chair of the MPRC.  Mr. Lussier 114 

seconded the motion, which passed by unanimous vote. 115 

 116 

Chair Rogers stated that since there are no applications for this meeting, the MPRC will not be 117 

holding its second meeting this month.  He continued that the next meeting will be January 13, 118 

2022.  If needed, the follow-up meeting will be January 27.  As Mr. Kopczynski said, what this 119 

committee is doing is really developing a three-tier application review process for Applicants.  120 

They will be reviewing some interesting projects that meet the criteria to come before this 121 

committee as opposed to having to go to the Planning Board.   122 

 123 

6) Adjournment 124 

 125 

There being no further business, Chair Rogers adjourned the meeting at 10:14 AM. 126 

 127 

Respectfully submitted by, 128 

Britta Reida, Minute Taker 129 

 130 

Reviewed and edited by, 131 

Megan Fortson, Planning Technician 132 

 133 

5 of 43



6 of 43



MINOR PROJECT 
APPLICATION 
  
  PROJECT NARRATIVE 
 
  Applicant: Davis Oil Company 
 
   Project Name:  
  Davis Oil LP-Gas Storage Facility 
 

    Project Address: 
  14 Rose Lane 
  Keene, NH 
 
 
   Prepared By: 
   Robert P. Coluccio, PE 
   Web Engineering Associates, Inc. 
   4L Rocco Drive 
   Derry, NH 03038 
 
   Date: February 14, 2022 
 

 

  WEB ENGINEERING ASSOCIATES, INC. 
     111 Summer Street, Scituate, MA 02060     Phone: (781) 844-8323 

7 of 43

rpcol
NH stamp



I. Introduction 
This Minor Project Application pertains to a new LP-Gas (liquid propane) storage facility at the 
property located at 14 Rose Lane, Keene, NH.  This permit application is submitted in 
accordance with Article 20 and 25.12 of the City of Keene Land Development Code. 

II. Existing Site Conditions 
The subject property is located in the Industrial Zone of the City of Keene.  The property covers 
approximately 1.5 acres.  It is surrounded partially by a chain link fence and partially by 
topography and woods.  It is characterized by an existing oil storage facility, canopy covered oil 
truck loading rack, and a mix of vegetated, asphalt and gravel surfaces.  The site is a mix of flat 
surfaces, and relatively steep slopes. 
 
The site borders on a Low-Density Residential Zone (Main Street).  The proposed LP-Gas tanks 
will be located approximately 250 feet from the near side of Main Street.  Main Street is 25 or 
more feet higher in elevation than the area of the property where the LP-Gas tanks are proposed 
to be located.  A wooded area composed of coniferous and deciduous trees isolates the subject 
property from the Main Street properties. 
 
The 100-year flood plain covers a part of the property.  A Floodplain Development Permit 
Application has been filed in accordance with the City of Keene Code of Ordinances contained 
in Sections 54-66, Compensatory Storage Requirements and 54-100, Construction Within the 
100-year Flood Elevation.  That application proposed 7 cubic yards of compensatory storage to 
account for four concrete piers and two pipe supports.  The compensatory storage was provided 
in the area where the LP-Gas trucks will park while they are transferring LP-Gas into and out of 
the tanks. 
 
There are no jurisdictional wetlands on the property. 

III. Existing Site Uses 
Existing operations at the facility include a bulk oil storage facility and the storage of empty 
dumpsters and roll offs.  An aerial view and site photo are included in Appendix A. 
 
The existing bulk storage facility includes a 50,000-gallon and three 15,000-gallon vertical 
aboveground storage tanks (ASTs).  These ASTs are situated inside a concrete containment dike 
sized to meet state and federal secondary containment requirements.  The ASTs were approved 
by the NHDES in accordance with Env-Or 300. 
 
An existing truck loading rack is located alongside the oil containment dike.  Household delivery 
trucks fill at the loading rack for offsite distribution.  The loading rack is covered by a weather-

8 of 43



protection canopy.  Secondary containment under the loading rack provides spill protection for 
truck transfer activities. 

The property is also used by an outside sanitation company to store empty dumpster and roll 
offs.  These dumpsters and roll offs are used for offsite construction, and never contain any 
debris or refuse on site. 

Neighboring uses in the Industrial Zone include an asphalt batching plant, a septic system service 
provider, an electric supply warehouse, and the US Army Reserve.  Main Street is a mix of low 
density residential and commercial uses.   

IV. Proposed Conditions
Davis Oil is proposing to install an LP-Gas storage facility.  The purpose of the LP-Gas storage 
facility is to provide one-stop fuel service for their customers who use two fuels (oil for heating 
and LP-Gas for hot water and cooking), as well as provide fuel to new customers and customers 
engaged in fuel conversions supporting a cleaner burning alternative.  

The LP-Gas storage facility will consist of two 30,000-gallon ASME storage vessels.  These tank 
volumes are typical of LP-Gas storage facilities in Keene.  The dimensions of the vessels are 11-
feet in diameter x 48 feet long.  The tops of the tanks will be approximately 15 feet above 
surrounding grade.  Web Engineering modified the existing conditions plan prepared by Huntley 
Survey and Design to show the location of the proposed LP-Gas tanks and equipment, as well as 
compensatory storage for any new fill being placed as part of this application (compensatory 
storage is approximately 7 cubic yards). 

The 30,000-gallon tanks, pump, and piping will be located on concrete piers.  The bottom of the 
tanks, pump, and piping will be located at a minimum elevation of one foot above the 100-year 
floodplain.  The floodplain is delineated on the attached site plan prepared and certified by 
Huntley Survey and Design.   

The storage of dumpsters and roll offs on the site will cease prior to the installation of the LP-
Gas tanks. 

V. LDC Standards and Exemption Requests
The information provided below is submitted in accordance with the City of Keene Planning 
Board Major/Minor Project application requirements outlined further in Article 20 and Article 
25.12 of the Land Development Code (LDC).  Each standard will be addressed with regard to 
how the standard is met by the proposed design or, if an exemption is requested, how the 
exemption request is supported. 

9 of 43



Three sets of plans are included that support the information provided below.  The plans include 
an existing conditions site plan, a proposed site plan, elevation profiles, as well as mechanical, 
emergency systems, and electrical drawings.    

A. DRAINAGE AND STORMWATER MANAGEMENT 
The subject property currently consists of vegetated, asphalt and gravel surfaces.   There are 
no wetlands or water bodies on site or in its direct vicinity.  The property consists of 
vegetated and wooded slopes and a flat area where activities take place.  As mentioned 
above, a topographic low area of the site lies within the 100-year flood plain.  The flat area 
of the site is the topographic low area for the surrounding properties and road.  Therefore, no 
drainage leaves the site.  Stormwater is infiltrated through pervious surfaces on the site.   
 
The changes that are proposed under this application consist of 1) a minor amount of 
compensatory storage to account for the 7 cubic yards of concrete associated with the 
concrete piers, and 2) the replacement of existing pervious surface soils underneath the tanks 
with more pervious crushed-stone vegetation barrier. 
 
The proposed compensatory storage, by design, will not result in any changes in offsite 
stormwater discharge.  There are no grade changes that would affect the way that 
stormwater is managed on the site.  The crushed stone bed under the tanks would otherwise 
result in a minor decrease in offsite stormwater discharge, simply because the crushed stone 
will initially retain more water. 
 
Based on the facts that there will be no offsite stormwater discharge resulting from this 
application, an exemption from preparing a Drainage and Stormwater Management plan is 
requested. 

B. SOIL ANALYSIS 
A test pit was performed by Christopher Guida, Certified Soil Scientist, of Fieldstone Land 
Consultants, Milford, NH on December 14, 2021.  The purpose of the test pit was to 
determine the elevation of the seasonal-high water table as part of the Flood Plain 
application, as well as assess subsurface soils for structural load bearing properties. 
 
The test pit was located in the immediate vicinity where compensatory storage is proposed 
and where the concrete piers will be located.  The test pit indicated that the depth to the 
seasonal-high water table was 72 inches below grade (elevation 472 feet +/-).  The test pit 
also indicated suitable structural soils below the elevation of the bottom of the piers.  See 
Appendix B.   
 

10 of 43



For stormwater infiltration purposes, there will be no changes in off-site storm water 
discharge.  Therefore, an exemption from any additional Soil Analysis is requested. 

C. SEDIMENT AND EROSION CONTROL 
The proposed modifications involve a relatively minor amount of earth management.  
Excavation activities will be limited to the installation of the concrete piers.  Depth of 
excavation will be between 4 and 6 feet, sufficient to install the concrete piers below frost.   
 
The concrete piers associated with the LP-Gas tanks will be precast in order to minimize on 
site construction activities.  The excavations will be open only long enough to set the precast 
piers in place.  The excavated soils will immediately be used as backfill around and on top 
of the piers.  Construction of the piers is anticipated to take about one week. 
 
In addition to the tank piers, soil management will be required to install the crushed stone 
bed under the tanks and to create compensatory storage.  If soil is to be stockpiled for any 
length of time, it will be covered with poly sheeting to prevent erosion.  Off site disposal of 
excavation soils is anticipated to take one to two truck trips.  Other affected surfaces will be 
stabilized with road grade fill or rip rap, if required. 
 
Due to the relatively low time duration and volume associated with earth work activities, an 
exemption is requested for a Sediment and Erosion Control plan. 

D. SNOW STORAGE AND REMOVAL 
Web Engineering Drawing No. A-1 shows the areas associated with existing snow storage, 
which is adequate to maintain access to truck traffic and existing operations and emergency 
equipment associated with the oil facility.  No off-site snow removal takes place. 
 
The area where the LP-Gas tanks will be located is currently plowed to allow access to the  
dumpsters and roll offs. Once installation of the proposed LP-Gas tanks commences, the 
storage of dumpsters and roll offs on the site will cease, along with the requirement to 
provide access to the dumpsters and roll offs after a snow storm. 
 
Once the LP-Gas tanks are installed, the area surrounding the tanks will not be accessible to 
truck driven plows due to traffic protection and piping.  Therefore, snow around the tanks 
will be removed by hand and will be limited to that which is required to safely operate the 
facility and maintain access to emergency systems.  Therefore, the proposed tanks will likely 
result in a net reduction in the requirement for snow storage.   

11 of 43



E. LANDSCAPING 
The area between the site and its abutting properties are wooded.   The tanks will only be 15 
feet high +/-).   The 25-foot elevation difference between Main Street and the area where the 
tanks will be located will place the tanks out of the Main Street line of site.  Other occupants 
on Rose Lane are commercial and industrial.  The LP-Gas tanks will not impact the site 
aesthetics in that regard.   For these reasons, an exemption from a Landscaping Plan is 
requested. 

F. SCREENING 
As mentioned above, the area is zoned Industrial.  Natural topography and woods screen the 
site from Main Street.  Offsite visibility from abutting commercial and industrial 
occupancies is consistent with the existing character of the Industrial Zone.  For this reason, 
and the reasons given for landscaping, an exemption from a Screening plan is requested.   

G. LIGHTING 
Current lighting is limited to the on-site light poles located alongside Rose Lane and security 
lights at the loading rack.  No new lighting is proposed.  The LP-Gas tanks will only be 
operated during hours when lighting is not required or when they can be operated safely 
under existing lighting.  For these reasons, an exemption from a Lighting plan is requested. 

H. SEWER AND WATER 
Currently, there are no sewer or water services on the property and no new sewer or water 
services are proposed.  Therefore, an exemption from a Sewer and Water plan is requested. 

I. TRAFFIC AND ACCESS MANAGEMENT 
Current truck traffic consists of oil truck traffic and dumpster/roll off management traffic 
entering and exiting through the same access driveway. 
 
Truck traffic associated with the existing oil facility fluctuates throughout the year.  Oil sales 
are highest between December and March when home heating oil is in high demand.  Oil 
sales are lowest between May and October when heating oil demand drops.   
 
Between December and March, there are approximately 10 oil delivery truck trips per day.  
This number of trips drops to 1 or 2 per day during the summer.   
 
Dumpster/roll off storage results in up to 10 trips per day by the contractor. 
 

12 of 43



The proposed LP-Gas storage tank traffic will result in 2 to 4 delivery truck trips per day 
between December and March and 0 to 1 trip during the summer months.  LP-Gas truck 
traffic will replace the dumpster/roll off traffic, thus resulting in a net decrease in traffic.   
 
In addition, the LP-Gas tanks were located so that the delivery trucks could use the existing 
access driveway on the site.  Therefore, no new or modified access driveways are proposed. 
 
For the reasons stated above, an exemption from a Traffic and Access Management study is 
requested. 

J. FILLING AND EXCAVATION 
Excavation and earthwork will be a one-time activity for the specific purpose of installing 
concrete piers, providing a stone bed beneath the tanks, and creating compensatory storage 
in accordance with Article 23.  There are no proposed activities that will involve the 
commercial taking of earth, production and processing of construction aggregate, or 
transportation of earth and site restoration, as described in Article 24.   
 
The activities in the flood plain comply with the Floodplain Regulations in Article 23 (a 
Flood Plain Permit application has been submitted).   There are no jurisdictional wetlands on 
the site.  Therefore, there will be no fill or excavation that will impact wetlands.  The project 
will not result in 50 or more trucks of earth or gravel entering or leaving the site.   
 
For these reasons, an exemption from a Filling and Excavation permit is requested. 

K. SURFACE WATERS AND WETLANDS 
There are no surface waters or wetlands on the site. 

L. HAZARDOUS AND TOXIC MATERIALS 
From an environmental perspective, LP-Gas exists as a vapor at atmospheric conditions.  
LP-Gas exists as a liquid only under pressure.  A liquid leak immediately converts to vapor 
when it exits the pressurized container.  Therefore, soil and groundwater is not impacted by 
a propane release.  For this reason, neither secondary containment nor NHDES review is 
required. 
 
From a flammability standpoint, LP-Gas is a hazardous substance in accordance with NH 
RSA Section 339-A:2.  The proposed facility will be installed in accordance with NFPA 58, 
the Liquid Petroleum Gas Code and State Fire Codes.  A Fire Safety Analysis Manual for 
LP-Gas Storage Facilities was developed by the National Fire Protection Agency (NFPA), in 
conjunction with the National Propane Gas Association (NPGA) to improve safety at LP-
Gas storage facilities, as well as to provide a guidance for implementing NFPA 58 and 

13 of 43



coordinating emergency response equipment and water capacities with the local fire 
department.  A fire safety analysis has been prepared and submitted to the Keene Fire 
Department using the NPGA Fire Safety Analysis Manual as a technical guide. 

M. NOISE 
The facility is currently operated as an oil storage facility.  The existing oil storage facility 
generates relatively low-level noise from centrifugal pumps.  The noises at an LP-Gas 
storage facility are similarly generated, but by positive displacement pumps.  LP-Gas related 
positive displacement pumps typically emit lower noise levels than oil-related centrifugal 
pumps. 
 
Based on previous studies that Web Engineering has conducted, noise levels from 
centrifugal pumps are expected to attenuate to conversational levels (60 dB) at the distances 
between the pump and the nearest residential abutter.  Further, daily use of the LP-Gas and 
oil pumps only takes place in winter when doors and windows are closed.  For these reasons, 
an exemption from a Noise Study is requested. 

N. ARCHITECTURAL AND VISUAL APPEARANCE 
For the same reasons given for Landscaping and Screening, an exemption from a study of 
architectural and visual appearance is requested. 

  

14 of 43



Davis Oil 
14 Rose Lane
Keene, NH 

Legend    

14 Rose Ln

200 ft
N

➤➤

N15 of 43



Davis Oil 
14 Rose Lane
Keene, NH 

Legend    

14 Rose Ln

8.95 ft

N

➤➤

N
© 2022 Google

© 2022 Google

© 2022 Google

16 of 43



17 of 43



18 of 43



RI
GH

T 
OF

 W
AY

SE
E 

12
55

/17
3

PSNH
523/1X-1

ASPHALT

1" Pipe
Down 8"

BENCHMARK
TBM 901 MAG
ELEV=475.87'

11/4" Pipe, Up 12"
(5.21' From corner)

Stone
Monument
Up 12"

M

U
U

G
G G

G

EE
EE

v

M

INV:493.22
12" CMP

M

ASPHALT

GRAVEL

GRAVEL

ASPHALT

TANK

TANK

TANK

TANK

WOODED



50
0

49
0 48

0

47
6

47
8

50
0

490

480

47
6

5/8" Capped Rebar
Set 9/14/21

Railroad
Spike
Set 9/14/21N46°44'46"E          271.88'

S
47

°1
2'

34
"E

   
   

   
 2

55
.2

2'

S49°33'52"W          266.15'

N
48°54'20"W

          187.98'

N
48°39'37"W

  54.70'

EXISTING 1% CHANCE OF
FLOOD LINE (EL. = 476.4)

0.2% CHANCE
OF FLOOD LINE

1% CHANCE
OF FLOOD LINE

0.2% CHANCE
OF FLOOD LINE

[120-009]

8 Wentworth Road
Walpole, NH 03068

3175/125

[120-007]

664 Main Street
Keene, NH 03431

3080/457

[120-006]

19 Quincy Ave
Quincy, MA 02169-6709

2304/827

[113-002]

3 Washington Street
Keene, NH 03431

470/460; 404/283 &
395/408

[120-013-0000]

1036/921

[120-012]

678 Main Street
Keene, NH 03431

2354/227

BU
IL

D
IN

G
 S

ET
BA

C
K 

LI
N

E









11
1 S

UM
ME

R 
ST

RE
ET

, S
CI

TU
AT

E, 
MA

SS
AC

HU
SE

TT
S  

02
06

6



SI
TE

 PL
AN

 - P
RO

PO
SE

D 
MO

DI
FIC

AT
IO

NS





DA
VI

S O
IL 

CO
. IN

C.

A-
1

14
 R

OS
E L

AN
E, 

KE
EN

E, 
NE

W 
HA

MP
SH

IR
E

WE
B 

EN
GI

NE
ER

IN
G 

AS
SO

CI
AT

ES
, IN

C.

  









































































 
































































































PROPOSED 1% CHANCE OF
FLOOD LINE (EL. = 476.4)

PRIMARY SNOW STORAGE AREA 
(NO CHANGE PROPOSED)

EXISTING SECONDARY 
SNOW STORAGE 
(NO CHANGES PROPOSED)

EXISTING SNOW STORAGE

19 of 43











11
1 S

UM
ME

R 
ST

RE
ET

, S
CI

TU
AT

E, 
MA

SS
AC

HU
SE

TT
S  

02
06

6



PR
OP

AN
E T

AN
K 

SE
CT

IO
NS

 / E
LE

VA
TI

ON
S





DA
VI

S O
IL 

CO
. IN

C.

A-
2

14
 R

OS
E L

AN
E, 

KE
EN

E, 
NE

W 
HA

MP
SH

IR
E

WE
B 

EN
GI

NE
ER

IN
G 

AS
SO

CI
AT

ES
, IN

C.
































 













































































   





























  

 

 

 

 

 









































20 of 43











11
1 S

UM
ME

R 
ST

RE
ET

, S
CI

TU
AT

E, 
MA

SS
AC

HU
SE

TT
S  

02
06

6



CO
NC

RE
TE





DA
VI

S O
IL 

CO
. IN

C.

S-1
14

 R
OS

E L
AN

E, 
KE

EN
E, 

NE
W 

HA
MP

SH
IR

E
WE

B 
EN

GI
NE

ER
IN

G 
AS

SO
CI

AT
ES

, IN
C.






























 






 



































 







































































 
















 

21 of 43



RIGHT OF WAY

SEE 1255/173

3/4"
Capped Pipe
Flush

PSNH
523/1X-1

ASPHALT

1" Pipe
Down 8"

BENCHMARK
TBM 901 MAG
ELEV=475.87'

11
4" Pipe, Up 12"

(5.21' From corner)

Stone
Monument
Up 12"

ASPHALT

GRAVEL

GRAVEL

ASPHALT

TANK

TANK

TANK

TANK

WOODED

500

490

480

476

478

500

490

48
0

476

5/8" Capped Rebar
Set 9/14/21

Railroad
Spike
Set 9/14/21

1% CHANCE OF
FLOOD LINE

2% CHANCE OF
FLOOD LINE

1% CHANCE OF
FLOOD LINE

2% CHANCE OF
FLOOD LINE

[120-009]
Craig A. Vickers

8 Wentworth Road
Walpole, NH 03068

3175/125

[120-007]
Jamie L. & Todd H. Cox

664 Main Street
Keene, NH 03431

3080/457

[120-006]
Granite Keene LLC

19 Quincy Ave
Quincy, MA 02169-6709

2304/827

[113-002]
City of Keene

3 Washington Street
Keene, NH 03431

470/460; 404/283 &
395/408

[120-013-0000]
United States of America

1036/921

[120-012]
Heather R. Fitz-Simon

678 Main Street
Keene, NH 03431

2354/227

Existing Conditions Plan

LAND OF

Davis Oil Co. Inc.
located at

Tax Map Parcel No. 120-008
14 Rose Lane, Keene, Cheshire County, New Hampshire

Book 0000, Page 0000

Scale 1"= 20'

Surveyed 09/2021         Plan prepared 09/15/2021
Project No. H21-054          Cad File No. H21-054B.dwg

Huntley Survey & Design, PLLC

NH & VT Land Surveying, Wetlands & NH Septic System Design
659 West Road, Temple, NH 03084          (603) 924-1669          www.huntleysurvey.com

.
BYREVISIONDATENO.

PROJECT
LOCATION

Locus Map
1"=2,000'±

Keene
New Hampshire

ROUTE 101

ROUTE 12

M
AIN

STR
EET

MARLBORO ST.

KEENE
SWANZEY

ROSE
LA

NE
R

O
U

TE
 3

2

THE
BRANCH

CEM

CEMAS
HU

EL
O

T
SI

LE
N

T 
W

AY

Notes
1. NORTH SHOWN ON THIS PLAN IS REFERENCED TO NAD83 NH STATE PLANE GRID, BASED ON PLAN

REFERENCE No.3 AND SERVES ONLY TO DEFINE ANGULAR RELATIONSHIPS.

2. THE EXTERIOR BOUNDARY LINES SHOWN ON THIS PLAN ARE SHOWN FROM PLAN REFERENCES
LISTED.

3. TOPOGRAPHY SHOWN ON THIS PLAN IS FROM AN ACTUAL FIELD SURVEY BY HUNTLEY SURVEY &
DESIGN, PLLC PERFORMED DURING THE MONTH OF SEPTEMBER 2021. THE VERTICAL DATUM IS NAVD
88 OBTAINED BY TRIGONOMETRIC SURVEY FROM NHDOT DISK 237-0030.  CONTOUR INTERVAL IS TWO
(2) FEET.

6. JURISDICTIONAL WETLANDS WERE NOT OBSERVED ON SITE.

7. PORTIONS OF THE PARCELS SHOWN ARE LOCATED IN THE 1% CHANCE FLOOD HAZARD AREA (100
YEAR FLOOD) AND THE 2% FLOOD HAZARD AREA (500 YEAR FLOOD) PER FEMA PANEL 33005C0267E
EFFECTIVELY DATED MAY 23, 2006. THE 1% LINES SHOWN ARE AT ELEVATION 476.4 PER SECTIONS
LISTED ON SAID PANEL AND THE FIS CROSS SECTIONS. THE 2% LINES ARE GIVEN AS ELEVATION 478.

Plan References

REFERENCES INCLUDE ALL INFORMATION REFERRED TO ON ANY OF THE FOLLOWING PLANS:

1. BOUNDARY SURVEY, LAND OF CITY OF KEENE, LOCATED AT TAX MAP 90, BLOCK 22, LOT 006, ROSE
LANE, KEENE, NEW HAMPSHIRE, DATED JUNE 30, 2009; BY RUSSELL J. HUNTLEY, SVE ASSOCIATES
(PROJECT No.K1929 OBTAINED FROM SVE)

2. PERIMETER BOUNDARY SURVEY, TAX MAP PARCELS 906-22-002 & 906-22-018, 36 ROSE LANE, KEENE,
NEW HAMPSHIRE, DATED AUGUST 29, 2016; BY RUSSELL J. HUNTLEY, SVE ASSOCIATES (PROJECT No.
K2503 OBTAINED FROM SVE)

3. BOUNDARY PLAN LAND OF CITY OF KEENE, NEW HAMPSHIRE LOCATED AT TAX MAP PARCEL NO.
114-012, 560 MAIN STREET, KEENE, CHESHIRE COUNTY, NEW HAMPSHIRE, BOOK 253, PAGE 421 "THE
CITY PASTURE", DATED 07/25/2019; BY RUSSELL J. HUNTLEY, HUNTLEY SURVEY & DESIGN, PLLC (On File
at HSD).

4. ACTIVITY & USE RESTRICTION PLAN, LAND OF CITY OF KEENE, LOCATED AT TAX MAP PARCEL NO.
113-002-000, 00 ROSE LANE, KEENE, CHESHIRE COUNTY, NEW HAMPSHIRE, DATED 06/05/2020; BY
RUSSELL J. HUNTLEY, HUNTLEY SURVEY & DESIGN, PLLC (On File at HSD, Cad File No. H20-017A.dwg)

Surveyor's Certification
THIS SURVEY AND PLAT WERE PRODUCED BY ME OR THOSE UNDER MY DIRECT SUPERVISION FROM A
TOTAL STATION AND DATA COLLECTOR TRAVERSE THAT MEETS THE ALLOWABLE RELATIVE POSITIONAL
ACCURACY FOR URBAN AREAS AS REQUIRED BY THE STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE IN TABLE 500.1,
"ACCURACY MEASUREMENTS, LOCAL ACCURACY OF CONTROL SUPPORTING THE SURVEY," AND IS BASED
ON INFORMATION RECORDED AT THE CHESHIRE COUNTY REGISTRY OF DEEDS AS REFERENCED HEREON,
INFORMATION PROVIDED BY THE CLIENT AND PHYSICAL EVIDENCE FOUND.

THIS IS AN EXISTING CONDITION SURVEY AND IS SUBSTANTIALLY CORRECT TO THE BEST OF MY
KNOWLEDGE AND BELIEF. ALL DIMENSIONS ARE SUBJECT TO THE ERROR OF CLOSURE PREVIOUSLY
STATED.

PURSUANT TO RSA 676:18,III AND RSA 672:14
I CERTIFY THAT THIS SURVEY PLAT IS NOT A SUBDIVISION PURSUANT TO THIS TITLE AND THAT THE LINES
OF STREETS AND WAYS SHOWN ARE THOSE OF PUBLIC OR PRIVATE STREETS OR WAYS ALREADY
ESTABLISHED AND THAT NO NEW WAYS ARE SHOWN.

TREE LINE
EDGE OF WATER
CHAIN LINK FENCE

DEED VOLUME & PAGE
TAX MAP PARCEL NUMBER

STONE/CONCRETE BOUND
IRON PIN/PIPE

[1-2-3]
CHESHIRE COUNTY REGISTRY OF DEEDS

Symbol Legend

EDGE OF PAVEMENT
EDGE OF GRAVEL

M0NITORING WELL OR VENT

HD

22 of 43



23 of 43



24 of 43



25 of 43



26 of 43



27 of 43




























2/18/22

28 of 43



2/18/22

29 of 43



30 of 43



2/18/22

31 of 43



2/18/22

32 of 43



2/18/22

33 of 43



2/18/22

34 of 43



2/18/22

35 of 43



36 of 43



FO
R

 A
D

D
IT

IO
N

A
L 

IN
FO

R
M

A
TI

O
N

, R
EF

ER
 T

O
 P

R
O

JE
C

T 
M

A
N

U
A

L.

100% CONSTRUCTION DOCUMENTS

FAMILY MEDICINE
RESIDENCY CENTER

NO. DESCRIPTION DATE

C8C1

F8

I8

F1

37 of 43



 

1 
2094A 

M E M O R A N D U M 
 
Ref: 2094A 
 
To: Kathryn Willbarger, CEO 
               Cheshire Medical Center 
  
From: Stephen G. Pernaw, P.E., PTOE 
 
Subject: Proposed Cheshire Medical Center Expansion 
               Keene, New Hampshire 
  
Date: April 19, 2021 

As requested, Pernaw & Company, Inc. has conducted this “Traffic Memorandum” for the 
proposed expansion of the Cheshire Medical Center (CMC) to the former Liberty Mutual 
insurance company building at 62 Maple Avenue in Keene, New Hampshire.  The purpose of 
this memorandum is to summarize the results of our trip generation analyses, as well as our 
research of available traffic count data.  To summarize:        

Proposed Development – According to the plan entitled “Alta/NSPS Land Title Survey-Liberty 
Mutual Insurance Company” prepared by Control Point Associates, Inc. dated 7/12/2019 (see 
Attachment 1), the former two-story Liberty Mutual Insurance Company building is located on 
the west side of Maple Avenue and south of the NH Route 12 interchange.  The existing building 
has a gross floor area of 147,000 sf, and CMC plans to relocate several of its clinical, healthcare 
and accessory support services (including a daycare facility) from the existing campus at 580-
590 Court Street.  Current plans call for the building to be divided into several sections, 
including an 87,000-sf general office section, a 50,000-sf medical office section and a 10,000-sf 
child care section.  Vehicular access to the site will continue to be provided via the two existing 
two-way site driveways (north and south) on the west side of Maple Avenue.  The northerly and 
southerly driveways are separated by approximately 500-feet.    

Figure 1 shows the location of the subject site with respect to the area roadway system, and it 
also shows the location of the nearby NHDOT short-term automatic traffic recorder count station 
on Maple Avenue.    

Existing Traffic Volumes – Research at the NHDOT revealed that the closest short-term 
Automatic Traffic Recorder count station to the site is located on Maple Avenue approximately 
240-feet south of the southerly site driveway.  According to the NHDOT reports, this section of 
Maple Avenue carried an Annual Average Daily Traffic (AADT) volume of approximately 
5,170 vehicles per day (vpd) in 2020, down from 6,794 vpd in 2019 (see Attachment 2).  

These AADT estimates were derived by the NHDOT from a six-day traffic count conducted in 
2017 and 2020 south of the subject site. Interesting to note, the more recent traffic count data 
collected in September 2020 clearly shows the impact of the Covid-19 pandemic.  

38 of 43



 

2 
2094A 

 

Both the 2017 and 2020 data demonstrate that weekday traffic volumes on Maple Avenue 
typically reach peak levels from 4:00 to 5:00 and/or 5:00 to 6:00 PM, thus corresponding to the 
typical commuter periods.  The diagrams on Page 3 summarize the daily and hourly variations in 
traffic demand along Maple Avenue, west of the subject site (see Attachments 3-5).  

39 of 43



 Pernaw & Company

2094A

Figure 1

Pernaw & Company, Inc.

Traffic Memorandum, Proposed Cheshire Medical Expansion, Keene, New Hampshire

Site Location

= AUTOMATIC TRAFFIC RECORDER LOCATION (NHDOT)

NORTH

SITE 
LOCATION

2020 AADT
5,170 vpd

EXISTING
SITE

NH Route 12

M
ap

le
 A

ve
nu

e

40 of 43



 

5 
2094A 

 

Trip Generation - To estimate the quantity of vehicle-trips that was generated by the former 
insurance company and will be generated by the proposed relocation of specific CMC facilities, 
Pernaw & Company, Inc. considered several standard trip generation rates and equations 
published by the Institute of Transportation Engineers (ITE)1.  For the existing insurance 
building, ITE Land Use Code 715 (Single Tenant Office Building) is the most applicable 
category.  The gross floor area was used as the independent variable in this case (see Attachment 
6).  
 
To estimate the quantity of vehicle-trips associated with the CMC relocation, a combination of 
several ITE trip rates/equations were utilized for the medical office component (LUC 720), the 
administration offices (LUC 710), and child care center (LUC 565).  Initially, the gross floor 
areas were used as the independent variables for all building components, and these results are 
summarized in Table 1.  The second set of projections (Table 2) utilized the number of 
employees as the independent variable for the medical office component.  In this case, CMC 
plans on a medical staff of 81 persons in the 50,000-sf medical office section.  It should be noted 
that the employee density (employees/1,000 sf) in the medical section is much lower than is 
reflected in the ITE database.  While both ITE-based estimates are deemed credible, we expect 
that the Table 2 estimates more closely reflect the actual conditions in Keene.   

In both trip estimates, the child care center traffic will come from those working at 62 Maple 
Avenue and those working at the Court Street campus.  Use of the child care facility by Maple 
Avenue employees is accounted for in the office trips.  Use of the child care facility by Court 
Street employees represents additional trips entering/existing the Maple Avenue site.  According 
to CMC, the Court Street campus will account for approximately half of the child care trips.       

The trip generation analysis is summarized on Table 1 and shows that the proposed Cheshire 
Medical Center Expansion will generate approximately 74 vehicle-trips (52 arrivals, 22 
departures) during the worst-case weekday PM peak hour period (see Attachment 7).  The trip 
generation analysis summarized on Table 2 shows that there will be a net reduction in peak hour 
trips (-18 trips), when compared with the former use of the site (see Attachment 8).     

                                                           
1 Institute of Transportation Engineers, Trip Generation, tenth edition (Washington, D.C., 2017). 

41 of 43



 

6 
2094A 

 

       Weekday (24 Hour)

Entering 827 veh 917 veh 464 veh 119 veh 1500 veh 673 veh

Exiting 827 veh 917 veh 464 veh 119 veh 1500 veh 673 veh

Total 1654 trips 1834 trips 928 trips 238 trips 3000 trips 1346 trips

Entering 235 veh 94 veh 93 veh 29 veh 216 veh -19 veh

Exiting 29 veh 27 veh 15 veh 26 veh 68 veh 39 veh

Total 264 trips 121 trips 108 trips 55 trips 284 trips 20 trips

Entering 38 veh 48 veh 16 veh 26 veh 90 veh 52 veh

Exiting 216 veh 124 veh 84 veh 30 veh 238 veh 22 veh

Total 254 trips 172 trips 100 trips 56 trips 328 trips 74 trips

1 ITE Land Use Code 715 - Single Tenant Office Building (147,000 sf)

2 ITE Land Use Code 720 - M edical-Dental Office Building (50,000 sf)

3 ITE Land Use Code 710 - General Office Building (87,000 sf)

4 ITE Land Use Code 565 - Day Care Center (10,000 sf) - 50% work at M aple Street campus, 50% work at Court Street campus

       Weekday (24 Hour)

Entering 827 veh 353 veh 464 veh 119 veh 936 veh 109 veh

Exiting 827 veh 353 veh 464 veh 119 veh 936 veh 109 veh

Total 1654 trips 706 trips 928 trips 238 trips 1872 trips 218 trips

Entering 235 veh 37 veh 93 veh 29 veh 159 veh -76 veh

Exiting 29 veh 11 veh 15 veh 26 veh 52 veh 23 veh

Total 264 trips 48 trips 108 trips 55 trips 211 trips -53 trips

Entering 38 veh 27 veh 16 veh 26 veh 69 veh 31 veh

Exiting 216 veh 53 veh 84 veh 30 veh 167 veh -49 veh

Total 254 trips 80 trips 100 trips 56 trips 236 trips -18 trips

1 ITE Land Use Code 715 - Single Tenant Office Building (147,000 sf)

2 ITE Land Use Code 720 - M edical-Dental Office Building (81 employees)

3 ITE Land Use Code 710 - General Office Building (87,000 sf)

4 ITE Land Use Code 565 - Day Care Center (10,000 sf) - 50% work at M aple Street campus, 50% work at Court Street campus

ITE Trip Generation Summary A
(Independent variable: gross floor area)

Table 1

Proposed Medical Center

Net Change

Former 

Insurance 

Company 1
Medical     

Offices 2

Admin. 

Off ices 3 Childcare 4 Total

       AM Peak Hour

       PM Peak Hour

Table 2
ITE Trip Generation Summary B

(Independent variables: gross floor area &  employees for medical use)

       AM Peak Hour

       PM Peak Hour

Proposed Medical Center

Net Change

Former 

Insurance 

Company 1
Medical     

Offices 2

Admin. 

Off ices 3 Childcare 4 Total

42 of 43



 

7 
2094A 

 

Findings & Conclusions: 

1. Access to the subject site on Maple Avenue will continue to be provided via two two-way 
site driveways (north and south) that will intersect the west side of Maple Avenue 
approximately 400-feet and 900-feet north of the Maple Avenue/Park Avenue intersection. 
Both site driveway approaches to Maple Avenue are delineated with two departure lanes: an 
exclusive left-turn lane and an exclusive right-turn lane.   

2. According to data collected at the NHDOT count station that is located approximately 240-
feet south of the southerly site driveway intersection, this section of Maple Avenue carried an 
average weekday traffic volume of approximately 5,170 vehicles per day in 2020.  The 
highest hourly traffic volumes occurred from 4:00 to 5:00 or 5:00 to 6:00 PM on weekdays.  

3. The initial trip generation analysis, based on gross floor areas in the existing building, 
indicates that the proposed CMC uses (medical and administration office with child care 
facility) will generate approximately +74 additional vehicle-trips during the PM peak hour 
when compared with the former insurance company use.   
 
A more site-specific trip generation estimate that is based on the actual number of employees 
that will occupy the medical office space (rather than gross floor area as the independent 
variable), indicates that the overall CMC site will generate fewer trips during the worst-case 
peak hour periods, i.e., resulting in trip reductions.       

4. STOP sign control (MUTCD #R1-1) should be installed on both site driveway approaches to 
Maple Avenue.  New pavement markings, in the form of a 12–24-inch white stop line and a 
short section of double-yellow centerline (to separate inbound and outbound vehicles) should 
also be installed on both site driveway approaches.  

To summarize, with the anticipated change in weekday PM peak hour trips ranging from -18 to 
+74 vehicles (over a 60-minute period) resulting from the change from Liberty Mutual to CMC, 
it is reasonable to conclude that there will not be a significant change in traffic operations at the 
two site driveway intersections on Maple Avenue.  Excellent sight distances exist at both 
existing site driveway intersections, and each driveway is delineated with two departure lanes.  
Our only recommendation to CMC and the City of Keene is to install STOP sign control on both 
minor approaches to Maple Avenue, and install new pavement markings on the driveway.         

 
 
CC: Jason Reimers, Esquire 
       BCM Environmental & Land Law, PLLC.  

Attachments                                                                                                                                                                 

                        

 

43 of 43


	2022_03_10_Minor Project Review Committee_Agenda
	City of Keene Minor Project Review Committee
	AGENDA
	Thursday, March 10, 2022       10:00 AM            City Hall, 2nd Floor Council Chambers
	I. Call to Order – Roll Call
	II. Minutes of Previous Meeting – December 9, 2021

	2021_12_09_MPRC_mins_MF Edits
	SPR-01-22_Packet
	Application_Received 02-17-22
	Narrative_Received 02-17-22
	I. Introduction
	II. Existing Site Conditions
	III. Existing Site Uses
	IV. Proposed Conditions
	V. LDC Standards and Exemption Requests
	A. Drainage and Stormwater Management
	B. Soil Analysis
	C. Sediment and Erosion Control
	D. Snow Storage and Removal
	E. Landscaping
	F. Screening
	G. Lighting
	H. Sewer and Water
	I. Traffic and Access Management
	J. Filling and Excavation
	K. Surface Waters and Wetlands
	L. Hazardous and Toxic Materials
	M. Noise
	N. Architectural and Visual Appearance


	Plan Set_Received 02-17-22_REDUCED

	SPR-470, Mod. 1_Packet_REDUCED
	Application_Received 02-18-22
	Narrative_Received 02-18-22
	Plans & Elevations_Received 02-18-22_REDUCED
	Traffic Memo_Received 02-18-22




